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2023
105,328,145.89 98.45
1,473,360.91 1.38
189,708.21 0.18
106,991,215.01
100.00
14,351
2023
ENSEMBLE
INV CORP
2023
FIXED 0.77 84,148,100.75 | 90,229,574.00 | 87,486,594.95 | 81.77
12 27
COUPON
27DEC23 USD
2023
ENSEMBLE
INV CORP
2023
FIXED 0.77 26,302,159.89 | 27,645,743.00 | 27,051,359.53 | 16.68
12 27
COUPON
27DEC23 AUD
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2023

2023

67,919,157.87 CALL USD Index S42 2023 12 18 5,759,544.56 1,018,787.37
14,123,450.73 CALL AUD Index S42 2023 12 18 1,237,214.25 689,224.40
2023
221,102,214.63 29,656,440 10.064 1,350
2019 12
183,828,220.19 24,656,879 10.296 1,381
2020 12
122,430,183.28 16,421,560 10.228 1,372
2021 12
88,925,051.73 11,927,517 9.704 1,302
2022 12
2022 106,036,881.41 14,222,727 9.801 1,315
101,273,604.39 13,583,829 9.689 1,300
99,156,408.94 13,299,849 9.750 1,308
97,693,779.82 13,103,667 9.690 1,300
92,910,514.57 12,462,087 9.647 1,294
10 91,215,710.06 12,234,763 9.631 1,292
11 89,345,796.54 11,983,952 9.664 1,296
12 88,925,051.73 11,927,517 9.704 1,302
2023 89,082,035.04 11,948,573 9.743 1,307
88,984,203.52 11,935,451 9.745 1,307
88,910,503.61 11,925,566 9.808 1,316
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88,666,248.30 11,892,804 9.827 1,318

2019 12 67,871,498.99 6,039,206 10.136 902
2020 12 56,364,791.10 5,015,339 10.378 923
2021 12 35,719,242.26 3,178,298 10.372 923
2022 12 28,069,401.52 2,497,615 9.935 884
2022 30,566,245.20 2,719,784 9.901 881
29,762,837.19 2,648,297 9.786 871

29,830,946.28 2,654,358 9.856 877

29,588,436.23 2,632,779 9.836 875

28,994,499.88 2,579,931 9.822 874

10 28,877,121.01 2,569,486 9.867 878

11 28,829,077.51 2,565,211 9.922 883

12 28,069,401.52 2,497,615 9.935 884

2023 27,916,434.24 2,484,004 9.977 888
27,872,920.62 2,480,132 9.969 887

28,003,643.15 2,491,764 10.026 892

27,784,314.52 2,472,248 10.050 894
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22,959,898.235
22,959,898.235

989,738.195
989,738.195

21,970,160.040
21,970,160.040

0.000 4,115,642.682 17,854,517.358
0.000 (4,115,642.682) (17,854,517.358)
0.000 5,884,089.483 11,970,427.875
0.000 5,884,089.483 11,970,427.875
0.000 2,807,007.790 9,163,420.085
0.000 2,807,007.790 9,163,420.085

6,862,331.455
6,862,331.455

166,143.032
166,143.032

6,696,188.423
6,696,188.423

0.000 1,264,748.532 5,431,439.891
0.000 (1,264,748.532) (5,431,439.891)
0.000 1,987,517.573 3,443,922.318
0.000 1,987,517.573 3,443,922.318
0.000 618,629.965 2,825,292.353
0.000 618,629.965 2,825,292.353
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1903
2022 12 31

103,732,555.77 13,913,648
2.2 106,297,487.18 14,257,682
2.2 11 1,493,746.98 200,356
344,774.85 46,245
108,136,009.01 14,504,283
8 48,534.32 6,510
27,622.23 3,705
14,053.41 1,885
11,878.69 1,593
6 10,073.25 1,351
4 7,326.69 983
3 3,743.11 502
5 3,661.36 491
7 916.81 123
127,809.87 17,143
108,008,199.14 14,487,140
28,069,401.52 2,497,615
88,925,051.73 11,927,517

2,825,292.353
9,163,420.085

9.935 884
9.704 1,302
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1903
2022 12 31

2.4 968,698.43 129,932
4,920.25 660
973,618.68 130,591
8 670,929.02 89,992
6 139,249.06 18,677
4 101,274.85 13,584
5 50,634.65 6,792
26,373.50 3,537
15,960.40 2,141
3 14,974.04 2,008
14,047.53 1,884
7 12,661.02 1,698
6,765.11 907
221.61 30
33.06 4
1,053,123.85 141,256
(79,505.17) (10,664)
2.2 907,260.41 121,691
2.3 (1,397,606.34) (187,461)
2.2 (1,494,096.43) (200,403)
(2,063,947.53) (276,837)
2.2 (792,044.31) (106,237)
2.2 (5.667,639.94) (760,201)
(8,523,631.78) (1,143,275)
(31,793,119.84) (4,264,411)
(31,793,119.84) (4,264,411)
148,324,950.76 19,894,826

108,008,199.14 14,487,140
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1903
5,431,439.891 17,854,517.358
3,443,922.318 11,970,427.875

(618,629.965) (2,807,007.790)
2,825,292.353 9,163,420.085

56,364,791.10 5,015,339 183,828,220.19 24,656,879
35,719,242.26 3,178,298 122,430,183.28 16,421,560
28,069,401.52 2,497,615 88,925,051.73 11,927,517

10.378 923 10.296 1,381
10.372 923 10.228 1,372
9.935 884 9.704 1,302
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1903
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1903
2018 12 10
2019 29
100
2023 12 29
0.77
VTS

VT5
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0.01

0.53

1SDA CSA

2022 12 31 3,000,000

10

10.1

2008 10 21 50

10.2

11

CGML
2022 12 31

11.1

14,432,853.91 CALL AUD Index S42 2023 12 18 1,264,317.98 695,663.56

11.2

68,972,703.83 CALL USD Index S42 2023 12 18 5,848,885.27 1,020,796.02

87/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

6,708,439.27 1,493,746.98

12
2022 12 31
1.4709
13
CovID 19

14
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1903
2022 12 31

ENSEMBLE INV CORP FIXED COUPON 27DEC23 26,879,823.33 27,323,394.10 97.34

28,252,915
26,879,823.33 27,323,394.10 97.34
26,879,823.33 27,323,394.10 97.34
ENSEMBLE INV CORP FIXED COUPON 27DEC23 85,458,150.08 87,721,517.30 98.65

91,634,302
85,458,150.08 87,721,517.30 98.65
85,458,150.08 87,721,517.30 98.65

103,732,555.77 106,297,487.18 98.42

11
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of net assets as at December 31, 2022

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Metes usD
Assets
Investments
Ak cost 103,732 555,77
At market value 2.2 106,297,487.18
Options purchased at market value 22; 11 1,493,746,98
Cash at bank 344,774.85
Total assets 108,136,009.01
Liabilities
Distributor fees payable 8 48 534,32
Professional fees payable 27,622.23
Printing and publishing faes payable 14,053.41
Legal fees payable 11,878.69
Management fees payable & 10,073.25
Administrator fees payable 4 7,326.69
Trustee foes payable 3 3,743.11
Custodian fees payable 5 3,661.26
Agent Company fees payable 7 916.81
Total liabilities 127, 80987
Total net assets 108,008,199.14
MNet asset value
AUD Denomingted Units AUD 28,0689,401.52
USD Denominated Units uso B8,925,051.73
Number of units outstanding
AUD Denominated Units 2,825,292.353
USD Denominated Units 9,163,420.085
MNet assat value per unit
AUD Denominated Units AUD 9.935
USD Denomingted Units ust 9.704

The acoompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

"
Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2022

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

_ Notes UsD
Income
Interest income on Mvestments 2.4 558,698.43
Bank interests 4,920.25
Total income 973,618.68
Expenses
Distributor fess 8 670,929.02
Management fees & 139,249,056
Administrator fees 4 101,274.85
Custodian fiees 5 50,634.65
Professional expenses 25,373.50
Legal expenses 15,960 .40
Trustee fees 3 14,574.04
Printing and publishing expenses 14,047.53
Agent Company fees 7 12,861.02
Safekesping fess &,755.11
Transaction fiees 22161
Bank interest 33.06
Total expenses 1,053 423 .85
Net investment loss (79,505.17)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal statements.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Net investment loss (75,505.17)
Net realised:

Gain on investments 2.2 907,260 .41
Loss on foreign exchange 23 {1,397,606.24)
Loss on options 2.2 {1,494,096.43)
Total net investment loss and realised loss for the year {2,063,947.53)
Net unrealised:

Cepredation on options 2.2 (792,044 .31}
Depradation on investments 2.2 (5,667,639.94)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations _ (8,523,631.78)

Movement in capital:

Redemptions of units {31,793,119.84)
Net movement in capital (31,793,119.84)
Net assets at the beginning of the year 148,324,950.76
MNet assets at the end of the year 108,008,199.14

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statistical information UNAUDITED

Tanget Setting at Maturity Fund 1903
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Number of units outstanding at the end of AUD Denominated Units LSk Denominated Units

the year

December 31, 2020 5,431,439.891 17,854,517.358

December 31, 2021 3,443,922.318 11,570,427.875
number of units redeemed (518,629.965) {2,807,007.790)

December 31, 2022 2,825,292 353 9 163,420.085

MNet assets at the end of the year AUC Denominated Units UsD Denominated Units

December 31, 2020
Cecember 31, 2021
December 31, 2022

ALD 56,364,791.10
ALD 35,719,242.26

USD 183,828,220.19
USD 122,430,183.28

Net assets per unit at the end of the year

DCecember 31, 2020
December 31, 2021
December 31, 2022

ALD 28,069,401.52 usD  88,925,051.73
AUD Denominated Units USD Benominated Units
AUC 10378 Ush 10.296

AUD 10.372 usD 10.228

AUD 9935 Ust 9.704
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

MNotes to the financial statements

{As at December 31, 2022)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 1 - Activity

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903 (the "Series Trust"), & series trust of the Trust created
and established pursuant to the Trust Deed and 2 supplemental trust deed made on
Dzcember 10, 2018 between the Trustee and the Manager. The Series Trust commenced operations
on March 29, 2019 belng the first capital subscription received.

Investment ob jective and policies

The Series Trust's investmeant objective is to provide investors in each class of Units with @ return which
s linked to:

{2) a portfolio which aims to achleve a targeted returmn of 1009% of the Issue Price of each class
of Units {the "Target Redempton Level") at the Maturity Date (*) {Iin respect of each dass
of Units, the "Fixed Portion"); and

{b) & portfolio which provides an exposure to the Index of each dass of Units {in respect of
each dass of Units, the "Active Portion™).

{(*): The "Maturity Date" means December 29, 2023 or such other date as the Manager may
determine.

The allocation between the Active Portion and the Fixed Portion in respect of each class of Units was
fixed shortly after the launch date of the Serles Trust with the objective that the minimum amount that
Is necessary in order to achieve the Target Redemption Level in respect of each class of Units would
be allocated to the Fixed Portion for each class of Units, with the remalning balance being allocated to
the Active Portion for each dass of Units.

The Fixed Portion seeks to achieve the Target Redempiion Level for 2ach dass of Units at the Maturity
Date by providing exposure o the relevant Notes for each class of Units {l.e. in respect of the USD
Denominated Units, the USD Notes, and in respect of the AUD Denominated Units, the AUD Notes, the
"Flxed Portlon Transactions"). Ensemble Investment Corporation SA (the "Mote Issuer”) Issued each of
the Notes at a discounted price to their expected redemption price prior to the Maturity Date. Each of
the Notes has Its maturity date that falls on or before the Maturlty Date and are deslgned to achieve
the Target Redemption Level for such class of Units at thelr maturity.

The Serias Trust, for the account of each class of Units, will receive a coupon of approximately 0.77%
per annum of notional amount of the respective Notes (denominated in USD In respect of the USD
Notes, and denominated in AUD in respact of the AUD Notes), calculated and accrued dally and payable
in arrears on & monthly basis, pursuant to the terms of the relevant Fixed Portion Transactions, which
will be used to setide certain operating costs and expenses in respect of the Serles Trust.

The Active Portion will, through the Lookback Call Option Transactions, provide investors in each dass
of Units with an exposure 0 the Index applicable to the relevant dass of Unlts {i.e. in respect of the
USD Denominataed Units, the Global Muld Asset USD VT 5 Series 2 Index (the "USD Index"), and in
respect of the AUD Denominated Units, the Global Mulll Asset AUD VT 5 Series 2 Index {the "AUD
Index") {each, an "Index" and together, the "Indices").
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Motes to the financial statements (continued)

(As at December 21, 2022)

Target Sefting at Maturity Fund 1903

Mote 1 - Activity (continued)

The rules and methodology applied by the Index are substantially identical to one another, save that
because the USD Index is denaominated in USD, and the AUD Index Is denominated in AUD, hedging
arrangements between the applicable Qass Base Currency and the constituents of the Core Asset and
the Reserve Asset which are denominated in currencies other than the relevant Oass Base Currency
will operate differently in each case of USD Index and the AUD Index.

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies

2.1 - Presentation of financial statements

The financlal statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to investment funds in  luxembourg. The Notes are scheduled to mature
December 27, 2023. Upon maturity of the MNotes, the Manager intends to compulsorily redesm all
remaining units in issue and terminate the Series Trust, As the maturity date of the Notes are within
twehve months from the date financial statements are approved, the financial statements are prepared
o0 a non-going concem basis whereby assets have been stated at their realizable amounts and
labillties have been stated at amounts expected to be setled. Mo provision for liquidation cost has
been made as it [s not considered to be materal in the context of the financial statements.

2.2 = Valuation of the investments

The Administrator will calculate and publish the Net Asset Value per Unit in the applicable Class Base
Currency on the Closing Date and on each Valuation Day.

The Net Asset Value per Unit will be calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value by the number of Units
in issue. The Net Asset Value per Unit will be rounded to 3 decimal places {according to natural
rounding convention with 0.0005 being rounded up) or to such other number of decimal places as
determined by the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee. In determining the Net Asset Value,
the Administrator will follow the following valuation policies and procedures:

{a} Subject as provided In paragraphs (b) and {c) below, all calculations based on the value of
investments Isted, quoted, traded or dealt Tn on any stock exchange, commodities exchange,
futures exchange or over-the-counter market will be made by the Administrator by reference
to the last traded price or official closing price according to its local rules and customs on the
principal exchange for such investments as at the close of business in such place an the day as
of which such calculation is to be made, if the Valuation Day is not a business day for such
place, on the last business day for such place preceding the Valuation Day; and where there [s
no stock exchange, commodities exchange, futures exchange or over-the-counter market for a
particular investrment, the valug of such investment will be calculated by reference to the latest
available price of such investment quoted by any person, firm or institution making a market in
that investment (and If there shall be more than one such market maker then such particular
market maker as the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, may designate); provided
always that if the Manager, in consultation with the Trustes, in its discretion considers that the
prices an another exchange or prices provided by any independent data provider, including
Bloomberg or Interactive Data Corporation provide in all the clrcumstances a fairer criterion of
value in relation to any such Investment, it may Instruct the adoption of such prices;

96/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Motes to the financial statements (continued

(As at December 31, 2022)

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 - Valuation of the investments (continued)

(b) if no last Taded price, official cosing price and other price quotations are available as provided
in paragraph (a) above, the value of the relevant investment will be determined from tme to
time in such manner as the Manager (in consultztion with the Trustee) shall determine;

(c) for the purpose of ascertaining the listed, quoted, traded or market dealing prices of any
Investment pursuant to paragraph (2) or (b} above, the Admirisirator is entiled to use and rely
upon price data and/or information provided by any mechanised and/for electronic systems of
price dissemination and the prices provided by any such system will be deemed to be the last
traded prices, official dosing price, or the latest available price for the purpose of paragraph (2)
or (b)Y above;

{d} short-term money market investments and bank deposits will be valued at cost plus accrued
interest;

(e} the value of any investment (whether of a security or cash) denominated in a currency ather
than the Functionzl Currency shall be converted into the Functional Currency at the rate
{whether officizl or otherwise’ which the Administrator deems appropriate in the circumstances
having regard to any premium or discount which may be relevant and to costs of exchange;

(f} option transactions and other over-the-counter derivative transactionsfinstruments will be
valued based on the net present value of their expected cash flows. Where the calculation agent
for such option transactions or other owver-the-counter derivative transactionsfinstruments is
also the counterparty, and in order to avoid any conflicts of interests arising from such dual
capacity, the Manager or its delegate will be required to perform tolerance checks in respect of
such valuation with 2 frequency at least equal to that of the calculation of the Net Asset Value;
and

{0} notwithstanding the foregoing, the Manager {in consultation with the Trustee) may permit some
other method of valuation to be used if it considers that such valuation better reflects the fair
value of the relevant Investment,

2.3 - Foreign currency translation

The Series Trust's financial statements is presented in US dollars (USD). Classes of units are
denominated in USD and Australian Dallar {AUD).

Assets and liabilities expressed in other currencies than the US dollar are translated into USD at
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting vear. Transactions expressed in foreign currencies
are translated into USD at exchange rates prevailing at the ransaction dates.

Unrealised and realised gains or losses on foreign exchange translations are recognised in the
Statement of operations and changes in net assets in determining the result of the reporting year.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Motes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2022)
Target Setting at Maturty Fund 1903

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3- Foreign currency transiation (continued)

Unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses arising on the valuation of the portfolio at market value
are included in net change in unrealised on appreciation or depreciation on investments and options,
Realised foreign exchange gains or losses arising on sale of investments and options are included in
realized gains or losses on investments and options. Other net foreign exchange gains or losses are
induded in realized gains and losses on foreign exchange in the Statement of operations and changes
in net assets

2.4~ Interest income on investments

Interest income is accrued on a dafly basis.

Note 3 - Trustee fees

The Trustee, 2 related party to the Series Trust, is entitted to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a trustee fee of USD 15,000 per annum, calculated and accrued daily and payable quarterly in
arrears.

Note 4 - Administrator fees

The Administrator is entitled to receive from the trust fund of the Serfes Trust an administration fee of
0.08% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each cdass of Units calculated and accrued
daily and payable monthly in arrears. The Calculation Amount is the issue price applicable to the
relevant class of Units multiplied by the number of Units of such dass of Units in issue at the time of
calculation,

Note 5 - Custodian fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive from the trust fund of the Series Trust a custody fee of 0.04% per
annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of Units calculated and accrued daily and
payable monthly in arrears.

Note 6 - Management fees

The Manager, 2 related party to the Series Trust, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust & management fee of 0.11% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each dass
of Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

|

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2022)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 7 - Agent Company fees

The Agent Company, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust a fee of up to 0.01% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each dass of
Linits, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 8 - Distributor fees

The Distributor, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a fee of up to 0.53% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each dass of Units
calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 9 - Collateral arrangement

In order to mitigate the counterparty risk exposure arising from the option transactions, the Trustes,
for the account of the Series Trust, has entered info a collateral arrangement with the option
counterparty. This arrangement s based on an Industry-standard ISDA {International Swaps and
Derivatives Association) Master Agresment and a CSA ([Credit Support Annex). In terms of this
arrangement, the option counterparty delivers cash (USD) collateral to the Custodian for the account
of the Series Trust. The collateral pool is marked to market and adjusted on each Valuation Day.

As at December 31, 2022, no amount of collateral is received and deposited into the collateral account
of the Series Trust as the unsecured threshold of USD 3,000,000 has not been reached.

Mote 10 - Taxation

10.1 - Cayman Islands

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Trust has received an undertaking
from the Govemor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income, profits and
capital taxes for a period of S0 years from October 21, 2008, the date of the creation of the Trust.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is Included in these financial statements,

10.2 - Other Countries

The Series Trust may be stbject to withholding or other taxes on certain income sourced In other
countries.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

{As at December 31, 2022)
Target Selting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 11 - Option contracts

Lookback call option transactions that provides the Active partion are entered into between the
Manager, acting as agent for the Trustee, and CGML.

As at December 31, 2022, the Series Trust has the following open lookback call options:

11.1 - Option contracts of AUD Denominated Units

_Cluantity Index Option ooy Maturity Cost  Market value
14,432,853.91 CALL AUD Index S92 AUD 18/12/2023 1,264.317.98 695,663.56

11.2 - Option contracts of USD Denominated Units

_Quantity Index Opton ooy Maturity Cost  Market value
68,972,703.83 CALL USD Index S42 Usp 18/12/2023  5,848,88527  1.070,795.02
_Total (combined) oy Cost  Market value
UsD 6,708,430.27  1.493,746.98

Note 12 - Exchange ratee

The exchange rate against USD used as at December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Currency  Exchange rate
AUD 1.4702

Note 13 - Significant events during the year

The Manager has made an assessment of the situation of the Series Trust in the context of the
coronavirus {COVID-19) pandemic and, while financial markets have been wvery volatile and the
worldwide health situation remains difficult, confirms that it has no plan to terminate the Series Trust
either as of the date the financial statements were approved or in the foreseeable future. The Manager
will continue to closely monitor the situation of the Series Trust in the best interests of the unitholders.

The war in Ukraine has led to higher inflationary pressures and an increase in volatility, The Seres
Trust did not have direct exposure to Russia’s companies and no commercial relationship with Russia
or Russian citizens.

Note 14 - Subsequent events

In preparing these financial statements, the Series Trust conduded that there were no significant
subsequent events that require adjustments and/or disclosure to these financial statements, up to the
date of the auditor’s report, which is the date that the financlal statements were available to be issued.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Schedule of investments as at December 31, 2022

Target Setiing at Maturity Fund 1903
ALD Denominated Units

mMominal  Description Currency Cost Market value  Ratic™

Note AUD AUD AUD %

28,252,915 [ENSEMBLE INV CORP FIXED COUPON AUD 26,879,823.33 27,323,394.10 9734
Z7DECZ3 AUD

Tatal Noke 2687982338 2732339410 9734

Total investment 25,879,823.33 27,323,394.10 9734

USD Denominated Units

Mominal  Description Currency Cost Market value  Ratio®

Nate usp usp Usp %

91,634,302 ENSEMBLE INV CORF FIXED COUPON ush 85,458,150.08 B7,721,517.30 S8.65
27DEC23 USD

Total Mate 85458,150.08  BY,721,517.30 98.65

_Total investment 85,458,150.08  87,721,517.30 98.65

Total investments (combined) usp 103,732,555.77 106,297,487.18 98.42

This schedule contains information on the investments in notes enly and does not indude the information on the option
contracts. Information on the option contracts is disdosed in Note 11 to these finandial statements,

{*) Weight of the market value against the total net assets expressed in %.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

| Classification of investments by country and by economic sector UNAUDITED

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Total {combined)
Oassification of investments by country and by economic sector
Country Economic sector Ratio (%) *
Luxembourg
Other Finandal Service Activities, Except Insurance And Pension Funding N.E.C. 58.42
Total investments (combined) 9842

This schedule contains information on the iInvestments in notes only and does not indude the information on the option
contracts. Information on the option contradts s disdosed in Note 11 to these financial statements.

{*) Weight of the market value against the total net assets expressed in %e.
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1903
2021 12 31

135,378,536.83 18,158,323
2.2 143,611,108.18 19,262,558
2.2 11 4,316,052.46 578,912
547,997.28 73,503
148,475,157.92 19,914,973
8 64,096.36 8,597
30,070.73 4,033
6 13,302.43 1,784
12,337.01 1,655
10,917.78 1,464
4 9,676.11 1,298
5 4,836.63 649
3 3,751.53 503
7 1,211.36 162
7.22 1
150,207.16 20,147
148,324,950.76 19,894,826
35,719,242.26 3,178,298
122,430,183.28 16,421,560

3,443,922.318
11,970,427.875

10.372 923
10.228 1,372
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1903
2021 12 31

2.4 1,363,537.39 182,891

1,363,537.39 182,891

8 948,202.44 127,182

6 196,806.99 26,398

4 143,130.24 19,198

5 71,562.45 9,599

30,188.46 4,049

20,362.75 2,731

7 17,895.20 2,400

16,967.58 2,276

3 15,040.90 2,017

9,023.66 1,210

2,092.37 281

260.18 35

281.58 38

1,471,814.80 197,415

(108,277.41) (14,523)

2.2 4,888,938.73 655,753

2.3 (1,552,276.22) (208,207)

2.2 (2,236,673.99) (300,005)

991,711.11 133,018

2.2 3,972,781.89 532,869

2.2 (7,124,939.64) (955,668)

(2,160,446.64) (289,781)

(76,458,244.73) (10,255, 344)

(76,458,244.73) (10,255, 344)

226,943,642.13 30,439,951

148,324,950.76 19,894,826
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1903
6,696,188.423 21,970,160.040
5,431,439.891 17,854,517.358

(1,987,517.573) (5,884,089.483)
3,443,922.318 11,970,427.875

67,871,498.99 6,039,206 221,102,214.63 29,656,440
56,364,791.10 5,015,339 183,828,220.19 24,656,879
35,719,242.26 3,178,298 122,430,183.28 16,421,560

10.136 902 10.064 1,350
10.378 923 10.296 1,381
10.372 923 10.228 1,372
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1903
2021 12 31
1903
2018 12 10
2019 29
100
2023 12 29
0.77
VTS

VT5
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15,000

0.08

108/266



0.11
0.01
0.53
1SDA
2021 12 31
CGML
2,580,000
250,000
3,000,000
1,545,111
10
10.1

2008 10 21
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3,000,000
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10.2

11

CGML
2021 12 31

11.1

17,564,003.82 CALL AUD Index S42 2023 12 18 1,538,606.74 1,501,177.84

11.2

90,001,262.09 CALL USD Index S42 2023 12 18 7,632,106.99 3,227,769.26

8,747,524 .37 4,316,052.46

12
2021 12 31

1.3794

13
CovID 19

14
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of net assets as at December 31, 2021

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Notes USD_
Assets
Investments
At cost 135,378,536.83
At market value 2.2 143,611,108.18
Options purchased at market value 22,11 4,316,052 46
Cash at bank 547 99728
Total assets 148,475,157.92
Liabilities
Distmbutor fees payable 8 6409636
Professional fees payable 30,070.73
Management fees payable & 13,302.43
Legal fees payable 12,337.01
Printing and publishing fees payable 10,917.78
Administrator fees payable 4 9,676.11
Custodian fees payable 5 483663
Trustes fees payable 3 375153
Agent Company fees payable 7 1,211.36
Other fees payable 722
Total liabilities 150,207.16
"Total net assets 148,324,950.76
MNet asset value
AUD Denominated Units AUD 35,719,242 26
LSD Demnominated Units sD 122 ,430,183.28
Number of units outstanding
AUD Denominated Units 3,443,922.318
USD Denominated Units 11,970,427.875
Net asset value per unit
AUD Denominated Units ALID 10.372
USD Denominated Units ush 10.228

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financal staternents.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2021

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Notes LsD
Income
Interest income on investments 24 1,363,537.39
Total income 1,363,537.39
Expenses
Distributor fees 8 S48 202 44
Management fees (] 196,806 .99
Administrator fees 4 143,130 .24
Custodian fees 5 71,562.45
Professional expenses 30,188 .46
Legal expenses 20,362.75
Agent Company fees 7 17,895.20
Printing and publishing expenses 16,967.58
Trustee fees 3 15,040.90
Safekeeping fees 902366
Bank interest 2,092.37
Transaction fees 260,18
Other fees 281.58
Total expenses 1,471 814.80
Net investment loss {108.277.41)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financal staternents.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2021

(continued)

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

MHet investment loss (108,277.41)
Net realised:

Gain on investments 2.2 4 B88,938.73
Loss on foreign exchange 2.3 (1,552,276.22)
Loss on options 22 (2,236,673.99)
Total net investment loss and realised gain for the year 991,711.11
Net unrealised:

Appreciation on options 22 3972,781.89
Depreciation on investments 22 (7,124,939 .64)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (2,160,446 64)

Movement in capital:

Redemptions of units (76,458,244.73)
Net movement in capital {76,458244.73)
Net assets at the beginning of the year 226,943 642.13
Net assets at the end of the year 148,324,950.76

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statistical information UNAUDITED

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Number of units outstanding at the end of

ALID Denominated Units

USD Denominated Units

the year
December 31, 2019 6,696,188.423 21,970,160,040
December 31, 2020 5,431,439.891 17,854,517.358
nurmber of units redssmead {1,9687,517.573) {5,884,089.483)
December 31, 2021 3,443,922.318 11,970,427 875
Net assets at the end of the year AJD Denominated Units USD Denominated Units
December 31, 2019 AUD 67 871,4998.99 UsSD 221,102,214.63
December 31, 2020 ALD 56,364,791.10 UsD 183,828,220.19
December 31, 2021 AUD 35,719,242.26 USD 122,430,183 .28
“Net assets per unit AUD Denominated Units USD Denominated Units
December 31, 2019 AUD 10.136 USD 10.064
December 31, 2020 AUD 10.378 UsSD 1029
December 31, 2021 AUD 10.372 LUsD 10.228
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements

(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 1 - Activity

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903 (the "Series Trust™), a series trust of the Trust created
and established pursuant to the Trust Deed and a supplemental trust deed made on
December 10, 2018 between the Trustee and the Manager. The Series Trust commenced operations
on March 29, 2019 being the first capital subscription received.

Investment objective and policies

The Series Trust's investment objective is to provide investors in each class of Units with a return which
is linked to:

(a) a portfolio which aims to achieve a targeted return of 100% of the Issue Price of each class

of Units (the "Target Redemption Level") at the Maturity Date (*) (in respect of each class
of Units, the "Fixed Portion"); and

{b) a portfolio which provides an exposure to the Index of each class of Units (in respect of
each class of Units, the "Active Portion™).

(*): The "Maturity Date" means December 29, 2023 or such other date as the Manager may
determine.

The allocation between the Active Portion and the Fixed Portion in respect of each class of Units was
fixed shortly after the launch date of the Series Trust with the objective that the minimurm amount that
is necessary in order to achieve the Target Redemption Level in respect of each class of Units would
be allocated to the Fixed Portion for each class of Units, with the remaining balance being allocated to
the Active Portion for each class of Units.

The Fixed Portion seeks to achieve the Target Redemption Level for each class of Units at the Maturity
Date by providing exposure to the relevant Notes for each class of Units (i.e. in respect of the USD
Denominated Units, the USD Notes, and in respect of the AUD Denominated Units, the AUD Notes, the
"Fixed Portion Transactions"). Ensemble Investment Corporation SA (the "Note Issuer") issued each of
the Motes at a discounted price to their expected redemption price prior to the Maturity Date. Each of
the Notes has its maturity date that falls on or before the Maturity Date and are designed to achieve
the Target Redemption Level for such class of Units at their maturity.

The Series Trust, for the account of each class of Units, will receive a coupon of approximately 0.77%
per annum of notional amount of the respective Notes {denominated in USD in respect of the USD
Notes, and denominated in AUD in respect of the AUD Motes), calculated and accrued daily and payable
in arrears on a monthly basis, pursuant to the terms of the relevant Fixed Portion Transactions, which
will be used to settle certain operating costs and expenses in respect of the Series Trust.

The Active Portion will, through the Lookback Call Option Transactions, provide investors in each class
of Units with an exposure to the Index applicable to the relevant class of Units (i.e. in respect of the
USD Denominated Units, the Global Multi Asset USD VT 5 Series 2 Index (the "USD Index"), and in
respect of the AUD Denominated Units, the Global Multi Asset AUD VT 5 Series 2 Index (the "AUD
Index") (each, an "Index" and together, the "Indices").
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 1 - Activity (continued)

The rules and methodology applied by the Index are substantially identical to one another, save that
because the USD Index is denominated in USD, and the AUD Index is denominated in AUD, hedging
arrangements between the applicable Class Base Currency and the constituents of the Core Asset and
the Reserve Asset which are denominated in currencies other than the relevant Class Base Currency
will operate differently in each case of USD Index and the AUD Index.

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies

2.1 - Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to investment funds in Luxembourg.

2.2 - Valuation of the investments

The Administrator will calculate and publish the Net Asset Value per Unit in the applicable Class Base
Currency on the Closing Date and on each Valuation Day.

The Net Asset Value per Unit will be calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value by the number of Units
in issue, The Net Asset Value per Unit will be rounded to 3 decimal places (according to natural
rounding convention with 0.0005 being rounded up) or to such other number of decimal places as
determined by the Manager, after consultation with the Trustes. In determining the Net Asset Value,
the Administrator will follow the following valuation policies and procedures:

(a) Subject as provided in paragraphs (b) and (c) below, all calculations based on the value of
investments listed, quoted, traded or dealt in on any stock exchange, commodities exchange,
futures exchange or over-the-counter market will be made by the Administrator by reference
to the last traded price or official closing price according to its local rules and customs on the
principal exchange for such investments as at the close of business in such place on the day as
of which such calculation is to be made, if the Valuation Day is not a business day for such
place, on the last business day for such place preceding the Valuation Day; and where there is
no stock exchange, commodities exchange, futures exchange or over-the-counter market for a
particular investment, the value of such investmenkt will be calculated by reference to the latest
available price of such investment quoted by any person, firm or institution making a market in
that investment (and if there shall be maore than one such market maker then such particular
market maker as the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, may designate); provided
always that if the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, in its discretion considers that the
prices on another exchange or prices provided by any independent data provider, including
Bloomberg or Interactive Data Corporation provide in all the circumstances a fairer criterion of
value in relation to any such Investment, it may instruct the adoption of such prices;

(b} if no last traded price, official closing price and other price quatations are available as provided
in paragraph (a) above, the value of the relevant investment will be determined from time to
time in such manner as the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee) shall determine;
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 - Valuation of the investments (continued)

(c) for the purpose of ascertaining the listed, quoted, traded or market dealing prices of any
Investment pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b) above, the Administrator is entitled to use and rely
upon price data and/or information provided by any mechanised and/or electronic systems of
price dissemination and the prices provided by any such system will be deemed to be the last
traded prices, official closing price, or the latest available price for the purpose of paragraph (a)
or (b) above;

(d) short-term money market investments and bank deposits will be valued at cost plus accrued
interest;

(e) the value of any investment (whether of a security or cash) denominated in a currency other
than the Functional Currency shall be converted into the Functional Currency at the rate
(whether official or otherwise) which the Administrator deems appropriate in the circumstances
having regard to any premium or discount which may be relevant and to costs of exchange;

(f) option transactions and other over-the-counter derivative transactionsfinstruments will be
valued based on the net present value of their expected cash flows. Where the calculation agent
for such option transactions or other over-the-counter derivative transactions/instruments is
also the counterparty, and in order to avoid any conflicts of interests arising from such dual
capacity, the Manager or its delegate will be required to perform tolerance checks in respect of
such valuation with a frequency at least equal to that of the calculation of the Net Asset Value,
and

(g) nobwithstanding the foregoing, the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee) may permit some
other method of valuation to be used if it considers that such valuation better reflects the fair
value of the relevant Investment.

2.3 - Foreign currency translation

The Series Trust's financial statements is presented in US dollars (USD). Classes of units are
dencminated in USD and Australian Dollar (AUD).

Assets and liabilities expressed in other currencies than the US dollar are translated into USD at
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting year. Transactions expressed in foreign currencies
are translated into USD at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.

Unrealised and realised gains or losses on foreign exchange translations are recognised in the
Statement of operations and changes in net assets in determining the result of the reporting year.

Unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses arising on the valuation of the portfolio at market value
are included in net change in unrealised on appreciation or depreciation on investments and options.
Realised foreign exchange gains or losses arising on sale of investments and options are included in
realized gains or losses on investments and options. Other net foreign exchange gains or losses are
included in realized gains and losses on foreign exchange in the Statement of operations and changes
in net assets.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 - Interest income on investments

Interest income is accrued on a daily basis.

Note 3 - Trustee fees

The Trustee, a related party to the Series Trusk, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a trustee fee of USD 15,000 per annum, calculated and accrued daily and payable quarterly in
dalrrears.

Note 4 - Administrator fees

The Administrator is entitled to receive from the trust fund of the Series Trust an administration fee of
0.08% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of Units calculated and accrued
daily and payable monthly in arrears. The Calculation Amount is the issue price applicable to the
relevant class of Units multiplied by the number of Units of such class of Units in issue at the time of
calculation.

Mote 5 - Custodian fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive from the trust fund of the Series Trust a custody fee of 0.04% per
annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of Units calculated and accrued daily and
payable menthly in arrears.

Note 6 - Management fees

The Manager, a related party to the Series Trust, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust a management fee of 0,11% per annum of the Calculation Amaount in respect of each class
of Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 7 - Agent Company fees

The Agent Company, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust a fee of up to 0.01% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of
Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Note 8 - Distributor fees

The Distributor, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a fee of up ko 0.53% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of Units
calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 9 - Collateral arrangement

In order to mitigate the counterparty risk exposure arising from the option transactions, the Trustee,
for the account of the Series Trust, has entered into a collateral arrangement with the option
counterparty. This arrangement is based on an industry-standard ISDA (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association) Master Agreement and a CSA {Credit Support Annex). In terms of this
arrangement, the option counterparty delivers cash (USD) collateral to the Custodian for the account
of the Saries Trust. The collateral pool is marked to market and adjusted on each Valuation Day.

As at December 31, 2021, the amount of collateral required is USD 4,125,111 and the amount of
collateral received from Citigroup Global Markets Limited ("CGML") and deposited into a collateral
account for the benefit of the Series Trust s USD 2,580,000. In accordance with the collateral
agreement, the difference between the collateral required and actual collateral received needs to be
above USD 3,000,000 in the case where CGML needs to pay collateral to the series trust with the
minimum transfer being USD 250,000. In this case the difference between the collateral required and
already received being USD 1,545,111 is below the USD 3,000,000 threshold for transfer.

Note 10 - Taxation

10.1 - Cayman Islands

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Trust has received an undertaking
from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income, profits and
capital taxes for a period of 50 years from October 21, 2008, the date of the creation of the Trust.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in these financial statements.

10.2 - Other Countries

The Series Trust may be subject to withholding or other taxes on certain income sourced in other
countries,

Note 11 - Option contracts

Lookback call option transactions that provides the Active portion are entered into between the
Manager, acting as agent for the Trustee, and CGML,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 11 - Option contracts (continued)

As at December 31, 2021, the Series Trust has the following open lookback call options:

11.1 - Option contracts of AUD Denominated Units

Quantity Index Option oy Maturity Cost  Market value
17,564,003.82 CALL AUD Index 542 AUD 18/12/2023  1,538606.74 1,501,177.84

11.2 - Option contracts of USD Denominated Units

nti Index Opti ocy Maturity Cost  Market value
$0,001,262.09 CALL USD Index 542 UsD 18/12/2023 7632,106.99 3227,769.26
Total (combined) (==} Cost  Market value
UsD 8,747,524.37 4,316,052 46

Note 12 - Exchange rates

The exchange rates against USD used as at December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Cu Exc e rate
AUD 1.37%4

Note 13 - Significant events during the year

The Manager has made an assessment of the situation of the Series Trust in the context of the
COVID-19 pandemic and, while financial markets have been very volatile and the worldwide health
situation remains difficult, confirms that it has no plan to terminate the Series Trust as of the date of
the foreseeable future. The Manager will continue to closely monitor the situation of the Series Trust
in the best interests of the unitholders.

Note 14 - Subsequent events

The war in Ukraine has led to higher inflationary pressures and an increase in velatility, although it
could delay the expected restrictive monetary policies of the European Central Bank. The Series Trust
did not have direct exposure to Russia's companies and no commercial relationship with Russia or
Russian citizens.

In preparing these financial statements, the Series Trust concludes that there are no other significant
subsequent events that require adjustments andfor disclosure to these financial statements.
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2023
88,782,961.04 11,908,458,564
116,712.74 15,654,680
88,666,248.30 11,892,803,884
9,022,947.286
9.827 1,318
2023
27,819,616.52 2,475,389,478
35,302.00 3,141,172
27,784,314.52 2,472,248,306
2,764,575.064
10.050 894
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100 1,708
2023 6,769 3,368 12
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2022 12 31
2022 12 31
2022 2022 2021 2021
58,037,164 991,274,761 81,829,082 1,397,640,721
3,939 67,278 3,473 59,319
() 1,125,854 19,229,586 (161,332) (2,755,551)
59,166,957 1,010,571,626 81,671,223 1,394,944 ,489
(37,143,151) (634,405,019) (61,875,944)  (1,056,841,124)
22,023,806 376,166,606 19,795,279 338,103,365
) (3,443,700) (58,818,396) (3,286,113) (56,126,810)
18,580,106 317,348,210 16,509,166 281,976,555
11 30 ( )
13
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2022 12 31
2022 12 31
2022 2022 2021 2021
() 13,149 224,585 15,021 256,559
3,985,588 68,073,843 6,373,203 108,854,307
79,042,876 1,350,052,322 309,193,039 5,281,017,106
83,028,464 1,418,126,165 315,566,242 5,389,871,413
11,998,401 204,932,689 28,471,600 486,294,928
©) 149,368 2,551,205 647,429 11,058,087
12,147,769 207,483,895 29,119,029 497,353,015
70,880,695 1,210,642,271 286,447,213 4,892,518,398
70,893,844 1,210,866,856 286,462,234 4,892,774,957
@) 2,000,200 34,163,416 2,000,200 34,163,416
68,893,644 1,176,703,440 284,462,034 4,858,611,541
70,893,844 1,210,866,856 286,462,234 4,892,774,957
2023 20
)
)
)
)
)
11 30 ( )
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2022 12 31
2022 12 31
2021 2,000,200 267,952,868 269,953,068
16,509,166 16,509,166
2021 12 31 2,000,200 284,462,034 286,462,234
2022 2,000,200 284,462,034 286,462,234
18,580,106 18,580,106
13 (234,148,496) (234,148,496)
2022 12 31 2,000,200 68,893,644 70,893,844
2021 34,163,416 4,576,634,985 4,610,798,401
281,976,555 281,976,555
2021 12 31 34,163,416 4,858,611,541 4,892,774,957
2022 34,163,416 4,858,611,541 4,892,774,957
317,348,210 317,348,210
13 (3,999,256,312) (3,999, 256,312)
2022 12 31 34,163,416 1,176,703,440 1,210,866,856
11 30 ( )
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2022 12 31
2022 2022 2021 2021
22,023,806 376,166,606 19,795,279 338,103,365
(3,939) (67,278) (3,473) (59,319)
22,019,867 376,099,328 19,791,806 338,044,046
2,387,615 40,780,464 2,122 36,244
(16,473,199) (281,362,239) 9,884,391 168,825,398
7,934,283 135,517,554 29,678,319 506,905,689
(3,939,889) (67,293,304) (2,013,442) (34,389,589)
3,994,394 68,224,250 27,664,877 472,516,099
3,939 67,278 3,473 59,319
3,939 67,278 3,473 59,319
(234,148,496)  (3,999,256,312)
(234,148,496)  (3,999,256,312)
(230,150,163)  (3,930,964,784) 27,668,350 472,575,418

309,193,039

5,281,017,106

281,524,689

4,808,441,688

79,042,876

1,350,052,322

309,193,039

5,281,017,106
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2022 2021
58,037,164 81,829,082

2022 2021
11,525,187 25,849,811
19,703,288 23,385,076
4,154,685 10,511,444
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503,043 475,086
630,894 697,584
626,054 956,943
2022 2021
(3,813) (6,155)
3,445,641 3,290,087
3,441,828 3,283,932
1,872 2,181
3,443,700 3,286,113
16.5 (2021  16.5 )
2022 2021
22,023,806 19,795,279
3,633,928 3,266,221
(186,415) 26,047
(3,813) (6,155)
3,443,700 3,286,113
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2022 2021
647,429 (623,061)

(3,939, 889) (2,013,442)

(3,813) (6,155)

) 3,445,641 3,290,087

149,368 647,429

2021 17,202 17,202
(2,181) (2,181)

2021 12 31 15,021 15,021
2022 15,021 15,021
(1,872) (1,872)

2022 12 31 13,149 13,149

2022 12 31
2021
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383

2022 2021
8,278,000 7,778,000
3,512,997 9,857,857
3,992,035 2,431,474

860,700 808,200

16,643,732 20,875,531
2022 2021

79,042,876 309,193,039

2022 2021
3,607,843 5,018,058

186,649 1,239,606
191,096 115,539

3,985,588 6,373,203
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2022 2021

1,612,852 2,719,835

9,898,636 25,283,479

486,913 468,286

11,998,401 28,471,600

2022 2021

12 31 20,002 2,000,200 20,002 2,000,200

135
2022 12
31 70,893,844 2021 286,462,234

100,000
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2022 2021
() 58,037,164 81,829,082
() (19,703, 288) (23,385,076)
19
20
25
27
28
31
1703 32 2022
30
33 2022 17
1710 34 2022
30
36
225 37

1802 38 2022 12 30
39

1809 40
41

1903 42

10

43

44
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45
46
47
48
2022 24
225 49
50
52 2022
21
2203 55
2022 31 1
54
53
2022 17 2
2012
1 53 55
2 55 53
/

19 20 25 27 28 31 32 33 34 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50 52 53 54 55

0.01 0.57
19 39 45 48
70 55 55
55 2022 12 31 19

39 45 48

19,703,288 2021 : 23,385,076

2022
12 31 11,525,187 2021 25,849,811
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2022 2021

16,643,732 20,875,531
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
2022 2021
228 603,092 33,081,601 3,419 952,524 8,172,619
1,821,512 2,191,885 2,617,546 3,768,281
(1,171,231)  (10,153,942) (1,473,267)  (25,290,774)
228 1,253,373 25,119,544 3,419 2,096,803 (13,349,874)
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2022 2021
« D « D)
« D « D
7.91 18 1.87 64
(1.01) (35)
9.40 117,817 0.14 2,936
(0.10) (1,253) (0.85) (17,823)
2021
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

12

2022 12 31

2022 12 31
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Crtforonn Ews! tnvestment Management Limitad

Financiai slalements for the year ended 31 Decermber 2022

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

(Expressed in Hong Kong doliars)

Note
Revenue 2
Interest income
Foreign exchange gain/{loss)
Olher operating expenses
Profit before taxation 3
Income tax 4(a)

Profit and total comprehansive incomea for
the year

2022
5

58,037,164
3,839
1,125,854
59,166,957

(37,143,151)

2021
S

81,820,082
3,473

81,671,223

(81,875,944)

22,023 E06

(3,443,700)

18.580,106

19,795,279

(3,286,113)

16,509,166

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends
paid to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are sat oul

in note 13,
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Cifigraup Fees! investment Menagement Limied
Financiad sfatemants for the year anded 31 Decamber 2022

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

MNote 2022 2021
S 5
Non-current assets
Deferrad tax assets 4(d) R ElﬂE ____._15_,[}_21
Current assets
Agcounts recelvable and other assets 7 3,985,588 6,373,203
Cash and cash eguivalents & 79,042 B76 309,193,039
83028 484 315,566,242
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenseas 8 11,998,401 28,471,600
Current taxation 4(c) 149,368 647,429
12,147,769 29,119,029
Net current assets 70880695 _ 285.447.213
MET ASSETS 70,883 844 286,462 234
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 9(a) 2,000,200 2,000,200
Reserves B8B83 644 " 284 462 034
TOTAL EQUITY 70,893 844 285 462 234

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of diractorson 2 0 APR 2023

)
-
" _,«;,g_ff'::l ) Directors
s )

[

.'.r i

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial slatements.
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Cabignowm Ferst iveestment Management Linvhed

Financial mlaments for the year engad 31 December 2022

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2022

{Expressed in Hong Kong doliars)

Share

Mote capital

Balance at 1 January 2021 2,000,200
Total comprehensive income far

the year

Balance at 31 December 2021 o _2_,!210_0,200

Balance at 1 January 2022 2,000,200
Total compraehensive income for

the year -

Dividend paid 13 -

Balance at 31 December 2022 2,000,200

Retained
profits Tafal
3 5

267 952 868 269,953,068

16,508,166 16,509,186

284 462,024 286 452 234

284,462,034 288,462 234
18,580,106 18,580,106

(234,148,496) (234,148.486)

68,893 644 70,693,844

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form parl of these financial statements.
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Ciffgroun Firs!t imsesiment Managament [ imitad
Fingnci statemeants for the year ended 3§ December 2022

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2022

(Expressed in Hong Kong doffars)

Note 2022 2021
b 3
Operating activities
Profit befare taxation 22 023,806 19,795,279
Adjustment for;
Interest income (3,939) (3.473)
Operating cashflow before changes in
working capital 22 018 867 18,791,806
Decrease in accounts receivable and other
assets 2 387,615 2,122
(Decrease)increase in accounts payable and
accrued expenses (16,473,199) 9,884,391
Cash generated from operating activities 7.934,283 28,678,318
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (3,939,889) (2,01 3.#_42!
Met cash generated from operating activities 3994394 __21_@!3'481:?_
Investing activities
Interest received 3939 3473
Met cash generated from investing activities 3,939 3,473
Financing activities
Dividends paid to equity shareholder of the
Company 13 _{?34.148.4%} =
Met cash used in financing activities L -{_2?:1_1_45_‘1‘351} _____________
Net (decreasellincrease in cash and cash
equivalents (230,150.163) 27 688,350
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 309,193.039 281,524 658
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 6 79,042,878 309,193,038

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial statements

10
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Cligroup First Invasimant Managemant Limited
Financipl staternens for the yeer ended 31 Decemnber 2022

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong doflars)

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statemants have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kang
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cerified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Significant accounting policies
adopled by the Company are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Company. Mote 1{c) provides
infarmation an any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Company for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of praparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparalion of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis.

The Company has chosen Hong Kong dollars as its functional currency which reflects the
economic substance of the underlying assets and circumstances relevant to the Company.
All values are rounded to the nearest Hong Kong dollar, unless otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets. liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and vanous other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstancas, the rasults of which form the basis of making the
judgements about camying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other scurces. Actual results may differ from these estimates

The eslimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the

revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

1
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Cilgroup Fis! investment Meanagamen! Limied
Financial statements for the poar anded 37 Decambar 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies

A number of new standards are effective from 1 January 2022 but they do not have a
material effect on the Company’s financial statements,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Company as revenue when it arises from the trading aclivities, the
provision of services in the ordinary course of the Company's business.

The Company is the principal for its revenue transactions and recognises revenue an a gross
basis. In determining whether the Company acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers
whether it obtaing contral of the services before they are transferred to the customers,
Contral refers to the Company's ability to direct the use of and oblain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from the services.

Revenue is recognised when control over service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

VWhere the contract contains a financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the presant value
of the amount recelvable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a financing compaonent
which provides a significant financing benefil to the Company, revenue recognised under that
conltract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Company takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or lass,

Further details of the Company's revenue and other income recognition policies are as
follows:

= Investment management fee income is recognised when the relevant services have been
rendered.

- Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross camrying amount of the financial asset.

12
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Cigroup First Invasiman! Managament Limned
Financial statemems for the yeer ended 31 December 2022

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i Provisions and cantingent liahilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive abligation arising
as aresult of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probabla that an outflow of economic benafits will be requirad. or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of cutflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as conlingent liabilities unless the probability of cutflow of economic benefits
i remole.

{g) Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafler stated at
amortised cost using the effeclive interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see note
1(k)(v)). except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment tenms or the effect of discounting would be immalerial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at invoice amounts less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debis

Impairmeant losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when there is objective
evidence of impairment and are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated fulure cash flows, discounted at the asset's original
effactive interest rate where the effect of discounting is material

Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Company about events that have an impact on the asset's estimated future cash flows such
as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

{h) Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated inio Hong Kong dollars at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange

rates ruling at the end of reporting pericd. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

13

157/266



(i)

a

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Cuigroup Firs! invesimen Mamagement Limred
Financial stademarnts for the year andad 11 Cecambar 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)
income tax

Income tax for the year comprises cument tax and movements in deferred tax assets. Current
tax and movements in defarred tax assets are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respeclively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Defarred tax assets arise from deductible temporary differences, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unusad tax credits,
Apart from differences which arige on initial recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reparting perod. Deferred tax assets are not
discounted

Current tax balances and deferred lax balances, and movements therein, are presented
separalely from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferrad tax liabilities if, and only if, the
Company has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually applies {o income tax levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Company if Lhal
person:

{iy has control or joint control over the Company,
(i}  has significant influence over the Company, or

(i} is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the
Company's parent.

14
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Citgroup Fust inveziment Menagement Limied
Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decembar 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b}  Anentity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

i)  The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i} One entity is an associate or joint ventura of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

{iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Company or an entity related to the Company.

(vi) The entity is contralled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

{vii) A person identified in (a){i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key managemeant parsonnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

{viii} The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a par, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity,

Financial instruments
Initial recognition

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which normally will be egual to the
lransaction price, plus, in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held al fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisilion or issue
of the financial asset or financial liakility.

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a
party to the contraclual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From this date, any gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities are
recorded.

15
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Ciigroug First Invesimen! Management Limided
Financial statermenis for the year anded 31 December 2022

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i} Classification and subsequent measurement

(A)

Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Company classifies financial assets as measured at
amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortisad cost if it maats both of the fallowing
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL.

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collsct
contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI"}

All other financial assets of the Company are measured at FVTPL.
Business model assessment

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held, the Company considers all of the relevant information about how the
business is managed, including:

- {he documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice
Thig includes whether the invesiment strategy focuses on earning contractual
interast income, maintaining a parlicular interest rate prefile, matching the duration
of the financial assats to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets,

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assels
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how the managers of the business are compensated: e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assels managed or the contractual cash flows
collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior pericds, the
reasens for such sales and expectations about future sales activity

Financial agsels that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held

to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to
sell financial assets.
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Cifigreniap Ficgt invasimen! Meanagemen! Limited
Fmancial statements for the yoar ended 371 Decembar 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(8)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration far the time
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (2.g.
liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Company considers:

contingant events that would change the amaount or timing of cash flows;

leverage features,
- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assels (e.g. non-
recourse features); and

- fealures that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. pericdical reset
of interest rates)

Reclassifications

Financial assets are nol reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the
pericd after the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Classification of financial agsets

Loans and receivabias

Loans and receivables include amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, accounts
receivable and other assets and cash and cash equivalents. These assets are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial labifities

Financial liabilities includes amount due to fellow subsidiaries and accounts payable

and accrued expenses. These liakilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or where the financial assel together with substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.
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Citigroup First investman! Manapamant Limidad
Financial stalements for he yoar ended 31 December 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Company uses the weighted average method to determine realised gains and losses to
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
derecognition.

Offselting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the
statement of financial position where there is a legally enforceable night to offset the
recognised amounts and thene is an intantion to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
seltle the liability simultangously.

Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances al an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-manth ECLs:

- financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other financial assets for which credit risk (l.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expacted life of the asset) has nat increased significantly since initial recognition

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial assel has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial instrument to have low credit risk when its credit risk
rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument,

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 menths after the reporting date {or a shorter peried if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measursment of ECLs

ECLs are the probability-weighied estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shorifalls (i e. the difference batween the cash flows due to the
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset
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Ciligroup First Investman! Managemen! Limded
Financial sietemems for the yesr andad 371 Decamber 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Credil-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cast are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occumed.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following cbservable data:

- gignificant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,;

- abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due: or

- itis probable that the borrower will enfer bankruptey or other financial reorganisation

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statemant of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assels measured at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets

Whrite-aff

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.,

Revenue

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of investment management services,

2022 2021
$ 3
Revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15
Investment management fea income 58,037,164 81,829,082
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Citigroue Firs! irvestiment Managemant Limited
Financial stefements for e year ended 31 Decembar 2022

3  Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

2022 2021

5 5

Management fee expenses 11,525 187 25849,6811
Sub-manager fee expenses 19,703.288 23,385,076
Legal and professional fee 4,154 685 10,511,444
Auditors' remuneration 503,043 475,086
Custody expenses 630 304 687 584
Printing expenses - %
Others 626,054 256,943

4 Income tax

(a] Income tax in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

represents:
2022 2021
5 B
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
Ower-provision in respect of the prior years (3,813) (6,155)
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 3445641 3.290,087
3.441 828 3,283,932
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,872 2,181

3,443,700 3,286,113

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022 is calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the
estimaled assessable profits for the year,
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Catigrowup Firs! mvestment Management Limded
Financial statermants for the year ended 21 December 2022

Income tax (continued)

Recanciliation between income tax charged to profit or loss and accounting profit at
applicable tax rates:

2022 2021

Profit before taxation 22 023,806 19,785,279
Motional tax an profit befare taxation at 16.5%

(2021: 16.5%) 3,633,828 3,266,221
Tax effect of non-taxable income and non-deductible

loss (186,415) 26,047
Cwer-provision in respect of prior years {3,813) {6,155)
Actual tax expense 3443700 3,286,113

Current tax payable in the statement of financial position represents:

Note 2022 2021
¥ 5

Current taxation bought forward 847 429 (623,061)
Hong Kong Profits Tax Paid (3,939,889) (2,013 442)
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax provision

relating to prior years (3.813) (8,155)
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the

year 4(a) 3,445 841 3.280.087

149,368 G47 429
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Cibgroup First Invesinmen! Menagement Limitad
Financia! statemanis for the year ended 37 December 2022

Income tax {continued)

Deferred tax assets recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the statement of financial position and
the movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
in excess of
the reflated
deprecialion
allowances Total
3 3
At 1 January 2021 17,202 17,202
Charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income {2,181} (2.181)
At 31 December 2021 15,021 15.62_1
At 1 January 2022 15,021 15.021
Charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income {1,872) (1 .BT?}

At 31 December 2022 1 §,149 13,14.9
As at 31 December 2022, there is no significant deferred tax asset or liability not recognised
or provided for (2021: $Nil).

Directors' emoluments

Directors' emeluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulations are as follows:

2022 2021

5 ]

Directors’ fees - -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,278,000 7,778,000
Discrationary bonusas 3,512,997 9,857,857
Share based payments 3,992,035 2431474
Retirement scheme contributions E'EIZEDD E_E}S,EEE)
16,843,732 20,875,531
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Financial stafarmants for the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2022 2021

3 s

Cash at bank 79,042 876 308,193,039
Accounts receivable and other assets

2022 2021

5 3

Investment management fee receivable 3,607,843 5,018,058

Legal and professional fee receivable 188,649 1,238,606

Others 191,096 115,538

3 985 588 6,373,203

All of the above fee receivables are due from funds managed by the Company. All the fee
receivables are interest free, unsecurad and expected to be setiled within three months.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

2022 2021

3 §

Legal and professional fee payable 1,612,852 2,719,835
Other payable 8,898,638 25,283 479
Audit fee 485913 468,288
11,998 401 28,471,600

All accounts payable and accrued charges are interest free, unsecured and expected to be
settled within three months.
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Catigroun First Investmen! Manegoment Limided
Fwrancial statements for tha year snded 31 December 2022

Share capital
Issued share capital
2022 2021
Na. of No. of
sharas Amount shares Amount
& $
Ordinary shares, issued and
fully paid:

At 1 January and 31 December 20,002 2,000,200 20,002 2,000,200

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares
of the Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company's residual assets

Capital management

The Company's primary abjective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. As the Company is part of a larger group, the
Company's sources of additional capital and policies for distribution of excess capital may
also ba affected by the group's capital management objectives.

The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity. On this basis the amount
of capital employed at 31 December 2022 was $70,893 844 (2021: $286 462,234).

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are
made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Company or the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the direclors’ fiduciary
duties towards the Company or the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The resulis of the directors’ review of the Company's capital structure are used as a basis for
the determination of the level of dividends, if any, that are declared.

As a licensed corporation registered under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance,
the Company is also subject to the capital requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules ("FRR"). The minimum liquid capital requirement is the
higher of $100,000 and the variable required liquid capital as defined in the FRR. The
Company monitors its compliance with the requirements of the FRR on a daily basis. The
Company complied with the requirements of the FRR at all times during the year.

24

168/266



10

(a)

()

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Citigroup Fies! lnvestment Managemen! Limiled
Financial statemants for the year anded 11 Decambar 2022

Related party transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company had
transactions in the normal course of business with related parties as follows:

Fee income and expenses

Mote 2022 2021
¥ $
Fee income
Investment management fee income (i) 58,037.164 81,829 082
Fee expeanses
Sub-manager fee expenses {iii) (19.703,288) (23,385,076)

The Company is the fund manager of the following funds during the year:

- Mexico Bond Fund ("Fund Series 197)

- Templeton Global Bond Fund Foreign Currency Series ("Fund Series 207)
- Global Balance Plus Fund ("Fund Series 25")

- US Focused Growth Equity Foreign Currency Series {"Fund Series 27")

- Treasury Premium Plus Fund ("Fund Series 287)

- Treasury Premium Plus Il Fund ("Fund Series 21"

- USD Denominated Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1703 ("Fund Series 327} (Terminated
on 30 Mar 2022)

- JPN High Dividend Equity with Short Index Allocation ("Fund Series 33") (Terminated on
17 Mar 2022)

- USD Denominated Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1710 ("Fund Series 34°) (Terminated
on 30 Sept 2022)

- JGB Asset Swap Fund ("Fund Series 387)
- Nikkei 225 Intraday Fund ("Fund Series 37")
- Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802 (*Fund Series 38") (Terminated on 30 Dec 2022)
- China Hong Kong Equity Oppertunities Fund {"Fund Series 387)
- Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1808 ("Fund Series 40")
Multi Asset Systematic Strategies Fund ("Fund Series 41")

- Target Setting Al Maturity Fund 1903 ("Fund Series 42°)
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Ciitfgyoug First ivvastment Management Lumiled
Financia! statemants for lw yoar ended 31 Decamber 2022

Material related party transactions (continued)
- Flexibeta Fund (VTS Defensive and VT10 Active) ("Fund Series 43°)

- USD Denominated Citigroup Note, Return Referring the High Watermark of Global Multi
Asset Strategy Fund (*Fund Series 447)

- Global Multi-Thematic Equity Fund {'Fund Series 457)

- US Equity Intraday Momentum Fund (“Fund Series 467)

- Algebris Financial Hybrid Securities Fund ("Fund Series 477}

- Asia Total Return Fixed Income Fund ("Fund Series 487) (Launched on 24 Jan 2022}

- Nikkei 225 Bear Intraday Fund ("Fund Series 48")

- US Large Cap Equity Intraday Fund ("Fund Series 507)

- US Large Cap Equity Bear Intraday Fund ("Fund Series 52") (Launched on 21 Jan 2022)

- Citigroup Note Targst Setting at Maturity Fund 2203 ("Fund Series 53°) (Launched on 31
Mar 2022)

- Citigroup Note Target Setting at Maturity Fund ("Fund Series 54%)

- US T-Note Bear Intraday Fund ("Fund Series 557) (Launched on 17 Aug 2022)

- CGMYL Index Target Volatility Fund 2012 (SP) ("CGMYL")

- Kokusai Turkish Bond Open (1M) Active Currency Hedge ("KAM")

The Company is entitled to fee income from the following funds under its management
Invesimant management/advisory fee income

For Fund Series 19, 20, 25, 27, 28, 31, 32, 33, 34, 38, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45 48,
47, 4849, 50, 52, 53, 54, 55, CGMYL and KAM, fees are calculated at 0.01% to 0.57% per
annum of the net asset value of tha funds.

Pursuant to the sub-management agreement signed between the Company and the
sub-managers for Series 19, 39, 45 and 48, the sub-managers’ fee expenses are payable to
the sub-managers calculated al 70%, 55%, 55% and 55% respectively of the gross
management fee income received. The total sub-managers’ fee expenses paid to the sub-
managers for Series 19, 38, 45 and 48 as at 31 December 2022 amounted to $18,703,288
(2021: 523,385,07E).

Management fee expanses

The Company paid managemenl fee expenses to fellow subsidiaries, which provided

ancillary sale support services to the Company. The management fee expense for the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to $11,525,187 (2021: 525,849,811).
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Ciligroug First imvesimen! Mamagemen! Limited
Financial statameanis for the year ended 31 December 2022

Material related party transactions (continued)

Key management personnel emoluments

Besides the directors’ emoluments disclosed in note 5, there were no other key management
personnel emoluments,

2022 2021
3 S

Amounts disclosed include emoluments
totalling 16,643,732 20,875,531

Amounts disclosed emoluments to cerlain key management personnel were paid by fellow
subsidiaries within Citigroup (“group companies"). The Company did not directly reimburse
the group companies for the service provided.

Financial instruments

Exposure to cradit, liquidity and interest rate risks and foreign currency risk arise in the
normal course of the Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company's
financial management policies and practices described below.

Credit risk

The Company's credit risk is primarily atiributable to cash and cash equivalents held at a
fellow subsidiary bank and outstanding fees receivable arising from the Company's
investment management activities. Managemeant has a credit policy in place and exposure to
credit risks is monitared on an ongaing basis.

Management fee receivables are regularly reviewed and settled on a regular schedule. For
the balance due from fellow subsidiaries, management considers the default risk of the
financial assets placed with the group companies to be remate.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is egual to the carrying amount of these financial
assets as of the end of the reporting period.

Liguidity risk

The Company's liguidity risk management process is integrated into the liquidity and funding
process and liquidity monitoring framework of Citigroup and broker dealers across the
Citigroup network. Citigroup policy requires Citigroup and broker dealers across the
Citigroup network te maintain a strong liquidity positicn and ensure sufficient cash flows to
meet both expeclted and unexpected current and future cash flow and collateral neads.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, all financial liabilities mature within one year or are
repayable on demand. Details of the earliest contraciual settlement dates of the financial
liabilities are disclosed in notes 8.

27

171/266



11
(e)

(d)

0]

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Sigroug First fnvesiment Managament Limied
Financial shatements for the year ended 31 December 2022

Financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company does not hold any fixed
rate deposits which are measured at fair value in the financial statements. The Company was
exposed to interest rate risk enly to the extent that it earms bank interest on cash and cash
equivalents in 2022 and 2021 which is considered to be insignificant.

Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the possibility that changes in foreign exchange rate will impact the
value of financial instruments.

To minimise the exposuras to foreign currency risk, management ensures that the net
exposure is kept at an acceptable lavel by buying or salling fareign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to cover the foreign currencies.

Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting pericd to

currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the Company to which they relate.

2022 = 021 0000
Auvstraian Japaness us Austrailion Jupanese us
Dolars Yer Dollars Caiars Y DOodlars
HKD HKD HED HELD HKD HHED
egquivaient equivaiant equivalent eguhiabant equhalent equnaient
Cash and cash
equbvalents 228 803,052 33,081,601 3419 952 524 3172818
Acoounts recsvabhe
end other assets . 1821512 2191885 . 2,617 548 3768281
Accounis payable
ard accrued
BACENLAS - [1.171.231) (10,153 ,842] - (1473,267) [25,250,774)
Crerall nel

eposure 223 1253373 25,119,544 3418 2.086,802 [13,349,874)

Hong Kong dollar (‘HKD") is pegged to the United States dollar ("USD"), the Company
therefore consider the risk of movements in exchange rates between the USD and the HKD
to be insignificant.
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Cifigroup First Invesiment Menagement Limded
Fwrancial statements for the year anded 31 Decambar 2022

Financial instruments (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change on the Company's profit before tax
that would arise if foreign exchange rate to which the Company has significant exposura at
the end of reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

2022 2021
Increase/ Increase’

(decrease) increase/ {decrease) Increase/
in foreign (decrease) in fareign (decrease)
exchange on profil exchange an profit

rales before lax rates befare tax

%% s % 3

Australian dollars 7.81 18 1.87 %]
- = (1.01) (35)

Japanese Yen 9.40 117,817 0.14 2,838
(0.10) (1,253) (0.85) (17,823)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Company which expose the Company
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including intercompany payables
and receivables that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2021.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are considered not to be materially different
from the carrying values in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021.

Immediate and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2022, the directors consider the Company's immediate holding company to
be Citigroup Global Markets Hong Keng Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in Hong
Kong. This entity produces financial statements but not available for public use. Its ultimate
holding company at 31 December 2022 is considered to be Citigroup Inc., which was
incorporated in the United States of America. Citigroup Inc. produces consolidated financial
statements under generally accepted accounting principles in the United Siates of America,
which ara available for public use.
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Ciligroup First Investment Managament Limiled
Financigl sletements for the year ended 31 December 2022

Dividend

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the year,

2022 2021
HKS HKS

Interim dividend declared and paid of US%1,499.85 per
ordinary share (2021: USENIl) 234,148,496 -

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
new or amended standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2022 and which have not been adopled in these financial stalements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Company.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statarments and 1 January 2023
HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making matenaiity judgements:
Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accouniing policles, changes in accounting 1 January 2023
estimates and arrors: Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes: Deferred fax relaled to 1 January 2023
assels and liabilities arising from a single lransaciion

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial staterments: 1 January 2024
Classification of liahilities as current or nan-current

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentaiion of financial statements: 1 January 2024
Non-currant liabifities with covenants

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and 1 January 2024
leaseback

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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2023 2,595 34 8,067
91.67
CIBC 1965
2023 9,015 4,448 133 4,646
2023 28
148.04

Société Anonyme

2023 963

2023 875 5,000
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1.1 1993

1.2
1960

1.3
1993

2020

2020

1.4

1.5 2022 12
12,995 3,224
2020
2020

1.6

2.1
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903 (the “Series Trust”), a
series trust of Red Arc Glaobal Investments (Cayman) Trust, which comprise the statement of net assets and
schedule of investments as at December 31, 2022, the statement of operations and changes in net assets for the
year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al materia respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations and changes in its net
assets for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to
investment fundsin Luxembourg.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standard) (“IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.1 in the financial statements, which describes that the going concern basis of
preparing the financial statements has not been used because, the Manager intends to compulsorily redeem all
remaining units in issue and terminate the Series Trust within twelve months from the date financia
statements are approved. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese.
We have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our auditors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the general information
and report of board of directors of the manager on pages 5 to 8, statistical information on page 15 and
classification of investments by country and by economic sector on page 17, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financia statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to investment funds in Luxembourg, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no redistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Series Trust's interna control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management of the Series Trust.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

KPMG

June 14, 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of
Citigroup First Investment Management Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Citigroup First Investment Management Limited (“the Company”) set out
on pages 7 to 30, which comprise the statement of financia position as at 31 December 2022, the statement of profit of
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised), The audit of licensed corporations and associated entities of intermediaries, issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA'
s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
abasisfor our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

260/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and to
report to you on the other matters set out in the preceding paragraph, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s interna control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’ s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20 April 2023
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903 (the “Series Trust”), a
series trust of Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust, which comprise the statement of net assets and
schedule of investments as at December 31, 2021, the statement of operations and changes in net assets for the
year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia
position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and changes in its net
assets for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to
investment funds in Luxembourg.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese.
We have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our auditors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the general information
and report of the board of directors of the manager on pages 5 to 8, statistical information on page 15 and
classification of investments by country and by economic sector on page 17, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financia statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to investment funds in Luxembourg, and

for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

KPMG

June 22, 2022
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